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Statement of Significance

The building at 414-418 W. Lombard Street has been an important
location in the manufacturing of clothing since 1890, when it was
built by one of Baltimore's major suit manufacturers. It is Balti-

more's first building in the commercial style of H. H. Richardson,

and is based on his Chicago Marshall Field store of 1886.
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CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
—EXCELLENT —DETERIORATED X _UNALTERED X_ORIGINAL SITE .
X_Gooo —RUINS —ALTERED —MOVED DATE
—FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The loft building at 414-418, a six story high, six
bay wicde and fourteen bay deep loft building is a masterpiece
of Richardsonian styling. It is built of brick, molded brick,
brown and red sandstone, and terra cotta.

The Lombard Street front presents the following
order: three monumental round arched openings rise through
the second floor: above each of these, slim pairs of round
arched recessions rise through the fifth floor to frame three
stories of windows; above each pair of these, triple sets of
flat arched windows running as at an attic level.

The major arched openings are deeply recessed with
stone moldings surrourding layers of molded brick. Arches are
supported on piers of brick laid in common bond with alternating
bands of stone. Bands of egg and dart and leaf molding top the
piers at the spring pcints. Openings are filled with two levels
of tripartite windows. On the first floor, windows rise above
brick panels. Windows are set in metal sash adorned with chain .
reliefs® transoms are above. Massive rivetted iron lintels with
rosettes run at the second floor level. Second floor windows
have central double hung windows with one-over-cne lights with
fixed sides. Entrance is obtained through the right bay.

Carved stone leaf moldings run as a string at the third
floor level. Triple engaged brick columns rise above supporting
leafy stere capitals from which the fifth floor brick arches
spring: alternating with flat brick piers.  Floors three through
five have double hung windows with two-over-two lights and
have stone sills .and lintels. The fifth floor window is round
arched. Rectangular brick panels fall between stories of
windows.

Sixth floor windows are set above 2 string of brick
mousetocthing. They are double hung with one-over-one lights
and each group of three is separated from the next by recessed
brick panels. They are topped by flat brick arches. A metal
cornice suppcrted on Romanesque styled metal brackets projects
at the roofline.

Variation occurs on the Paca Street side where end
bays project. The two bay wide ends are detailed identically
to the front. The central 10 bays feature segmentally arched
first floor windows which are double hung with one-over-one
lights. The windows decrease in height as they move north on .
Paca. All windows on this side have stone sills.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY (CONTINUED, PAGE 2)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The building at 414-418 W. Lombard St. has been an important
location in the manufacturing of clothing since 1890, when it was
built by one of Baltimore's major suit manufacturers. It is Balti-
more's first building in the commercial style of H. H. Richardson,
and is based on his Chicago Marshall Field store of 1886.

Historical Significance

The story of the StrousegBrothers, manufacturers of men's clo-
thing, is typical of the development and role of Jewish immigrants
in the growth of Baltimore as a major manufacturing center. Of the
six Strouse brothers who migrated from Germany to the United States
between 1850 and the years following the Civil War, three ran the
manufacturing business they had founded c. 1870 in Baltimore. Another
ran a retail outlet in Evansville, Indiana which is still operating.
Baltimore, as a terminus for German shipping lines, had large num-
bers of immigrants to put to work, and thus became one of six major
clothing manufacturing centers in the country. Strouse Brothers made
a fine line of summer clothes as well as men's suits which were sold
for $20-$25 all over the country and in Cuba. In 1914 they built an
addition which served a rapidly expanding market.

At the outbreak of World War I Strouse&Brothers was entirely
unionized, after a long period of labor troubles in the industry.
The business expanded first by making uniforms and then by suiting
returning veterans. In the wake of the war, tremendous inflation
in the market raised prices to $75-$100. A buyer's strike reversed
the situation overnight and retail outlets and factories went out of
business. Strouse and Brothers closed its doors in 1927, selling
out before losses were too great. At the time they employed about
2,500 people.

~ The great manufacturing men were highly respected in the com-
munity. Issac Strouse was president of Oheb Shalom Congregation for

. 30 years and a director of charitable organizations for many years

Cont'd.--

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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EXMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Vertical Files, Baltimore Industrial Museum

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
[IGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY
EB1FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE
Robert Weis, Philip Kahn
ORGANIZATION DATE
Baltimore Industrial Museum November, 1980
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
217 N. Charles St. (301) 396-1931 1936
CITY OR TOWN STATE
Baltimore Maryland 21201

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust .
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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414-418 W. Lombard Street
Strcuse & Brothers

7. DESCRIPTION, con'd Page 2

A strirg of molding runs at the second floor level,
and on the second floor are flat arched double hung windows
with two over two lights, with molded brick surrocunds.
Detailing on the third thrcugh sixth floors is identical to the
front.

Abcve the third floor string, a carved stone plaque
is set. carved with Sullivanesque ornament. It identified the
building but is partially concealed by a later metal sign.

The rear of the building, on Napoleon alley, is all of
brick with narrow segmentally arched windows with stone sills
and brick arches. Each is fitted with metal shutters. Napoleon
alley presents a vista of cobblestones and fire escapes.

Adjoining = the building to the east is a later, less
distinguished but sympathetically styled addition. =~ -_

_(O?q



Strouse & Brothers
Hist. Sign.

p. 2 G-/v74

as well. Leopold Strouse, retiring from the family firm in 1896, was
a director of several local banks, a bibliophile and benefactor of the
Johns Hopkins University library, and a member of Baltimore's water
board--serving under two mayors.

After the demise of Strouse § Brothers the building remained for
use by other manufacturers in the needles trade. The Marlboro Shirt
Company, a major national shirt manufacturer occupied the premises for
a time, and more recently it has been the home of Resisto ties, Moss
Shirts, Louis Marcus § Co., manufacturers of ladies clothing, and J.
Dashew, distributers of needle trade machinery, sewing machines and
pressing machines.
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The building at 410-418 W. Lombard Street has been an important location in the manufacturing of clothing since 1890,
when it was built by one of Baltimore's major suit manufacturers. It is Baltimore's first building in the commercial
style of H. H. Richardson, and is based on his Chicago Marshall Field store of 1886.
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DESCRIPTION

CONDITION ;:zecx ONE J“E“ ONE .

EXCELLENT —DETERIORATED NALTERED ORIGINAL SITE
GOOD —RUINS —ALTERED —MOVED DATE
—FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This six story high, six bay wide and fourteen bay deep loft building is a masterpiece
of Richardsonian styling. It is built of brick, molded brick, brown and red sandstone,
and terra cotta.

The Lombard Street front presents the following order: three monumental round arched
openings rise through the second floor; above each of these, slim pairs of round arched
recessions rise through the fifth floor to frame three stories of windows; above each
pair of these, triple sets of flat arched windows running as at an attic level.

The major arched openings are deeply recessed with stone moldings surrounding layers of
molded brick. Arches are supported on plers of brick laid in common bond with alterna-
ting bands of stone. Bands of egg and dart and leaf molding top the piers at the spring
points. Openings are filled with two levels of tripartite windows. On the first floor,
windows rise above brick panels. Windows are set in metal sash adorned with chain
reliefs; transoms are above. Massive rivetted iron lintels with rosettes run at the
second floor level. Second floor windows have central double hung windows with one-over-
ore lights with fixed sides. Entrance is obtained through the right bay.

Carved stone leaf moldings run as a string at the third floor level., Triple engaged
brick columns rise above supporting leafy stone capitals from which the fifth floor b
arches spring; alternating with flat brick piers. Floors three through five have double
hung windows with two-over-two lights and have stone sills and lintels. The fifth floor
window is round arched. Rectangular brick panels fall between stories of windows.

Sixth floor windows are set above a string of brick mousetoothing. They are double hung
with one-over-one lights and each group of three is separated from the next by recessed
brick panels. They are topped by flat brick arches. A metal cornice supported on
Romanesque styled metal brackets projects at the roofline.

Variation occurs on the Paca Street side where end bays project. The two bay wide ends are

detailed identically to the front. The central ten bays feature segmentally arched first
floor windows which are double hung with one-over-one lights. The windows decrease in
height as they move north on Paca. All windows on this side have stone sills.

A string of molding runs at the second floor level, and on the second floor are flat
arched double hung windows with two-over-two lights, with molded brick surrounds.
Detailing on the third through sixth floors is identical to the front.

Above the third floor string, a carved stone plaque is set, carved with Sullivanesque
ornament. It identifies the building, but is partially concealed by a later metal sign.

The rear of the building, on Napoleon alley, is all of brick with narrow segmentally
arched windows with stone sills and brick arches. Each is fitted with metal shutters.
Napoleon alley presents a vista of cobblestones and fire escapes.

Adjoining the building to the east is a later, less distinguished but sympathstd.cally.
styled addition. AR
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PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREMISTORIC  _ARCHEULUGY-PREHISTORIC  _COMMUNITY PLANNING —LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ~ _RELIGION
—1400-1499 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC — CONSERVATION —Law —SCIENCE
—1500-1599 GRICULTURE __ECONOMICS —LITERATURE —SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 tncuuscrune —EDUCATION —MILITARY —SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 —ART —ENGINEERING —MusIC —_THEATER
* 1800-1899 —COMMERCE —EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  _PHILOSOPHY —TRANSPORTATION
—1900- —COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY —POLITICS/GOVERNMENT —_OTHER (SPECIFY)

—INVENTION

SPECIFIC DATES / 8 y0 BUILDER/ARGHITECT

| STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
|

| Built as the headquarters of a men's clothing manufacturer, this

i inely detailed and prorortioned building is the earliest and most

a outstanding example of the Richardsonien mode of commercial build-
ing being clearly styled after the Marshall) Field Warechouse of 1886.

IN BALT M OR =

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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EJMA]JOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

EIGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY

3 TATE COUNTY

E§1FORM PREPARED BY

NEMEVTITEE Flanning Assistants
ORGANIZATION  ~aAMISSION FOR HW& DATE 1976
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Room 900
CITY OR TOWN ou - STATE

B iltimore, Md. 2120

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights. .

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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